
 

 

 

8

 
A

A

8:30am Call 
A. Appr
B. Treas
C. Paym
D. Confl

Action Items
1. Onon

 
The O
stude

Board
Corpo
Colle
 
Repre
 

ADJOURN 

to Order 
oval of Mar
surer’s Repo
ment of Bills 
lict of Intere

s  
ndaga Comm

OCC foundat
ents particip

 
d Action Req
oration of th
ge Foundati

esentative: 
   

O
333 W

8:30a.m. E

ch 19, 2013 
ort 

est 

munity Colle

tion propose
ating in non

quested: A r
he service co
on, Inc. 

 John Z
Dave W

ONONDAGA CIV
W.  WASHINGTON

PHONE: 315.4

MEET
OCDC R

Economic De
Apr

Meeting M

ege Foundati

es creating a
n‐credit bear

resolution of
ontract and a

Zacharek, Ex
Wall, Directo

VIC DEVELOPME

 STREET, SUITE 1

435.3770  FAX

TING AGEND
Regular Mee
evelopment 
ril 10, 2014

 

inutes 

ion 

 pilot progra
ring training 

f the Board a
all other rela

xecutive Dire
or of Corpora

ENT CORPORAT
130, SYRACUSE, N

X: 315.435.3669

DA 
eting  
Conference

am designed
programs.

authorizing 
ated docume

ector, OCC F
ate & Public

TION 
NY 13202 

9 

e Room 

d to meet th

the signing b
ents with On

oundation 
c Partnership

e financial n

by an office 
nondaga Com

ps  

needs of 

of the 
mmunity 



 

 1

ONONDAGA CIVIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

March 19, 2014 
 

The Regular meeting of the Onondaga Civic Development Corporation was held on Thursday, 
March 19, 2014 at 333 West Washington Street, Syracuse, New York, 13202, in the Adirondack 
conference room on the 2nd floor.   
 
called the meeting to order at 8:31 am with the following: 
 
PRESENT: 
   Matt McAnaney 
   Cydney Johnson 
   James Farrell 
   Thomas Bezigian 
   Len Manfrates 
 
ABSENT: 
   Scott Koldin 
 
ALSO PRESENT: 
   Julie Cerio, Office of Economic Development, Director 
   Honora Spillane, Secretary 
   Kristi Smiley, Treasurer 
   Linda McShane, Office of Economic Development 
   Karen Doster, Office of Economic Development 
   Christopher Andreucci, Harris Beach 
 

 

APPROVAL OF REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – FEBRUARY 13, 2014 
 

Upon a motion by Cydney Johnson, seconded by Len Manfrates, the OCDC Board approved the 

regular meeting minutes of February 13, 2014.  Motion was carried unanimously. 

 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Kristi Smiley gave a brief review of the Treasurer’s Report for the month of February 2014. 

 

Upon a motion by Thomas Bezigian, seconded by James Farrell, the OCDC Board approved the 

Treasurer’s Report for the month of February 2014.  Motion was carried unanimously.  

 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 



 

 2

 
Kristi Smiley gave a brief review of the Payment of Bills Schedule #038.   

 

Upon a motion by Cydney Johnson, seconded by James Farrell, the OCDC Board approved the 

Payment of Bills, Schedule #038 with General Expenses being $110,399.16 and Marketing being 

$1,551.35.  Motion was carried unanimously.   

 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

The Conflict of Interest was circulated and there were no comments. 

 

 

ST. JOSEPH’S HOSPITAL HEALTH CENTER 

 

Chris Andreucci stated that this is the final authorizing resolution.  He stated that last month the 

Board adopted an inducement resolution.  He stated that we had to wait until St. Joseph’s 

structured the financing to do the public hearing.  He stated that the public hearing is scheduled 

for March 25.  He stated that they decided to add a taxable series to the 2014 bonds through the 

indenture but not publically offered.  He stated that it will be purchased directly by M & T Bank 

so that is why he has modified the resolution to have it say tax exempt aggregate in one or more 

series so the Board gives the authorization.  He stated that if the Board approves the resolution 

today, the public hearing will be held and the County Executive will sign the TEFRA approval 

then the tax exempt bonds can be put in the public market.  He stated that the other thing the 

Board should consider is the request made with respect to a reduced fee because of the amount 

they have paid in fees over the last issuances.  He stated that they asked for a ½ of 1% instead of 

the full 1%. 

 

Honora Spillane stated that most everyone seemed to be in agreement with ¾ of 1%.   

 

Matt McAnaney asked if the Board should take action on that at this time.  Chis Andreucci stated 

yes.   

 



 

 3

Chris Andreucci stated that the Board has a fee policy that says OCDC will consider reduced 

fees on an individual basis.   

 

Upon a motion by Thomas Bezigian, seconded by James Farrell, the OCDC Board approved a 

resolution authorizing the issuance, execution, sale and delivery of the Onondaga Civic 

Development Corporation’s tax-exempt and taxable revenue bonds, series 2014 (St. Joseph’s 

Hospital Health Center Project), in one or more series and in an aggregate principal amount not 

to exceed $85,000,000 and the execution and delivery of related documents.  Motion was carried 

unanimously.   

 

Matt McAnaney stated that in according with the St. Joe’s request at the last meeting for a 

reduction in the standard OCDC fee from 1% to 50 basis points.  He stated that the collective 

decision which is in front of the Board is whether we want to act on that after the volume that St. 

Joe’s has brought to OCDC which has been significant over the years.  He suggested a 75 basis 

point on this particular issue.   

 

Honora Spillane stated that the Board is well within the policies and the fee structure to do so in 

this instance based on their continuing service with OCDC.   

 

Chris Andreucci stated that Matt McAnaney identified one of the factors that the Board had 

considered which is the volume that St. Joe’s has provided.  He stated some of the other factors 

the Board might want consider is the fact that St. Joe’s has transformed that area, has made 

significant investment to the community, is a significant employer to the community.  He stated 

that all of those factors allow the Board to make the consideration.  

 

Matt McAnaney stated that in addition to the services St. Joe’s provides as a charitable hospital 

in the area.  He stated that all of those indicate to him this makes sense and not setting a 

precedent for the future.   

 

 

Upon a motion by Cydney Johnson, seconded by Thomas Bezigian, the OCDC Board authorized 

a 75 basis point charge on the bonds to St. Joseph’s Hospital Health Center Project for the 

volume that they brought to us over the years and for the transformation of the neighborhood, 



 

 4

providing additional employment and the mission as being a charitable hospital.  Motion was 

carried unanimously. 

 

 

HANCOCK AIRPARK 

Bill Fisher thanked the Board for considering the request.  He asked if the Board knows the 

background of the Hancock airpark.  Honora Spillane stated that the Board received a draft of the 

memo that was sent. 

 

Bill Fisher gave a brief history of the Air Park. He stated that there are still are some 

opportunities and there are some properties that the County leases that generate some revenue 

but not enough to cover the expenses.  He stated that there are 50 plus acres of parcels, 2 of 

which are really useless and will never get sold.   

 

Kristi Smiley stated that there are 10 acres of wetlands and there is a thin strip in the back of 

about 8 acres that will be a little more difficult to sell so there is approximately 25 good acres.  

She stated that there has been a lot of interest in the past year.  She stated that Linda McShane 

markets it and there have been a couple conversations with one being serious in terms of looking 

at it.  

 

Bill Fisher stated that when the County looked at its options, they knew the land was theirs and 

the lease was going to be done so they had to figure something out.  He described the advantages 

of having OCDC manage the Airpark versus other entities. 

Kristi Smiley gave an overview of the Park’s current finances and proposed terms of OCDC 

taking over the management.   

 

Matt McAnaney stated that the County will indemnify OCDC.  Christ Andreucci stated yes it 

was talked about before and he assumes it would stay on.  Bill Fisher agreed. 

 

Bill Fisher stated that the in the short run the mission that OCDC has stated and that is on the 

website is supportive of this.  He stated that it may not be way up there on the things that the 

Board imagines doing but it is within the mission. 

 



 

 5

 

James Farrell stated that this makes sense but asked if there has been any conversation on who 

and how this will be managed.  Kristi Smiley stated that our office would do it.  She stated that 

she would continue to do the finances for it through OCDC.  She stated that Linda McShane 

would continue to market it and we would have to hire someone for preventative maintenance 

and HVAC but it wouldn’t be a lot of additional work on our end.   

 

James Farrell asked if the additional part of it would be subcontracted.  Kristi Smiley agreed.  

 

Kristi Smiley stated that the other piece besides the preventative maintenance or emergency 

things is landscaping.  She stated that the building that is being sold is also the contractor that 

does the landscaping now and she is sure they would continue.   

 

Matt McAnaney stated that those expenses would be passed through to the County.  Honora 

Spillane agreed and stated that essentially the revenues from the rents which don’t cover the 

expenses but they anticipate that the sale of the parcels will fill that backlog.   

 

Matt McAnaney stated that it is less a financial decision for OCDC because financially we won’t 

be impacted.  Bill Fisher stated that there is some impact on the resources used so OCDC pays a 

percentage of the salaries for people doing this work.  He stated that indirectly OCDC is 

spending some money to do this.   

 

Christ Andreucci stated that when the sales are completed, some of those costs can be offset by 

the SRA account as a cost of running this.   

 

Kristi Smiley stated that the resolution requested is to approve OCDC’s attorney to work with 

the County attorney to make sure OCDC is indemnified and no cash expenses.   

 

Matt McAnaney stated that he completely understands that they want to build pieces of two or 

three other properties to make a marketable park for a goal of ultimately to sell this property as 

privately owned.   Bill Fisher stated stated that you want to create opportunities for businesses to 

come in and get some value out of it.  He stated that the people in the park found it valuable 

because it was a good move for them, they could expand, and very easily do what they needed to 



 

 6

do and that is what economic development should be doing, creating those kinds of 

opportunities.  He stated that it is not just about the money but attracting people to make 

investments and then if they were successful they would create jobs, make profits, and pay taxes.   

 

Honora Spillane stated when land is owned by quasi-public entities that it is much more 

attractive to site selectors.  She stated that it is a selling piece.   

 

Thomas Bezigian asked after this if the Board has to approve the management agreement.  Matt 

McAnaney stated yes.  Chris Andreucci stated that there is a delegation of authority resolution so 

that it can be signed under commercially reasonable terms.  He stated that obviously the contract 

would have to reflect what was discussed here today and would not go outside of it.  He stated 

that if anything deviates from that then we would have to come back and that is how the 

resolution is written. 

 

Thomas Bezigian asked if we are trusting Chris Andreucci and Julie Cerio to sign the agreement.  

Chris Andreucci stated yes based upon the conversation. 

 

Kristi Smiley stated that if it is approved today staff will work through the contract things but 

this also needs to go before the legislature for final approval in April.  She stated that the earliest 

it would transition over would be early April.   

 

Bill Fisher stated that the County Executive would need authorization from the legislature to sign 

it on behalf of the County.   

 

Chris Andreucci stated that OCDC will be a landlord.  He stated that it will leased to OCDC and 

it will be subleased.  He stated that we will be in that chain but we will be indemnified by the 

County.  

 

Chris Andreucci stated that the County approval means that OCDC can do the sale of the 

property and won’t have to come back to the County each time a sale is done.  Bill Fisher agreed.   

 

Thomas Bezigian asked if there are appraisals out there or would we have to do them.  Chris 

Andreucci stated that if the appraisal is done under the 5 enumerated exceptions which you only 



 

 7

need to give a 90 day notice, he is pretty sure that an appraisal is not necessary.  He stated that he 

will look into it and let the Board know.   

 

Cydney Johnson stated that we all feel protective in what we do and how we do things.  She 

stated that one of the important thinks is if we are slightly under market in terms of what we are 

charging, we already have the right precedence.  She stated that our goal is never about showing 

profit or making a lot of money or bringing in tons of revenue.  She stated that we want to do 

what’s right for the community.  She stated that if we can do something that is short term or long 

term benefits, workforce development, jobs, development and attractiveness of our market that is 

what we are here to do.  She stated that she thinks OCDC has done well on other projects.  She 

stated that she thinks the Board is very diligent and cautious that we wouldn’t enter into 

something that we didn’t have complete comfort in.  She stated that she thinks we can get this 

done.   

 

 

Upon a motion by James Farrell, seconded by Cydney Johnson, the OCDC Board approved a 

resolution authorizing an office of the Corporation to enter into a management agreement for 

Hancock Airpark with Onondaga County.  Motion was carried unanimously.   

 

 

Upon a motion by James Farrell, seconded by Cydney Johnson, the OCDC Board adjourned the 

meeting at 9:13 am.  Motion was carried unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 __________________________________ 
 Honora Spillane, Secretary 















OCC Foundation Inc. 
Proposal to the Onondaga Civic Development Corporation 

April 2014 
 
A growing number of occupations in Central New York’s high-demand industry sectors require at least 
some education and training beyond high school. By 2020, over 60 percent of jobs in the United States 
will require at least some postsecondary education.1 However, many of these positions require industry-
recognized certifications or occupation-specific training and do not require a two-year or four-year 
degree as a prerequisite for entry. For example, in New York State over 145,000 positions in health care,  
32,000 positions in information technology, 201,000 in sales, 425,000 in office and administrative 
support, and 33,000 in business operations require postsecondary training but do not require an 
associate’s or bachelor’s degree.2 For adults seeking the most direct pathway to employment or 
advancement, these positions represent an ideal path to a new career and a better life for themselves 
and their families.  However, tuition for these credentials represents a significant barrier for many 
individuals working in low-wage jobs and for individuals seeking re-entry into the workforce. 
 
OCC Workforce Development Programs – Certification/Occupation Preparation 
Onondaga’s industry-recognized certifications and occupation-specific credentials represent the most 
direct pathway to a new field or employment opportunity for many unemployed and underemployed 
workers, as well as those preparing for advancement. The College’s programs prepare individuals for 
positions in health care, information technology, business, and public service, among other fields.   
Courses that prepare individuals for positions in health care include medical coding and billing, 
pharmacy technician, phlebotomy, medical assistant, medical terminology and medical transcription, 
and certified personal trainer. Home inspection and real estate courses prepare individuals for entry into 
the real estate sector. Supervision and management courses prepare individuals for advancement within 
their fields.  Information technology certificates include CompTIA A+, CompTIA Network, CompTIA 
Security+, Cisco Certified Entry Networking Technician, CCNA Routing and Switching, and Computer 
Forensics. In addition, Onondaga provides education and training for individuals who are preparing to 
launch a small business or to expand an existing business. 
 
Onondaga works to align its professional development and training programs with employment 
opportunities and to deliver occupation-specific credentials in response to emerging needs identified by 
local businesses throughout Central New York. For example, the College is currently in discussions to 
develop three new courses that will lead to dental assistant qualifications. Onondaga has also been 
approached to assist in training medical coders and billers in order to address needs identified by area 
employers.  
 
Request 
The Onondaga Community College Foundation, a New York State 501(c)(3) Corporation, requests that 
the Onondaga Civic Development Corporation provide an Economic Growth Grant in the amount of 
$40,000 to be used on a direct-funding basis. The entire grant will be immediately invested directly in 
the education of working adults or displaced workers who need industry-specific or occupation-specific 
training or certification to enter or advance within a high-demand field in Central New York. 
 

                                                           
1
 Carnevale, A., Smith, N., Strohl, J. (2010). “Recovery 2020: Job Growth and Education Requirements Through 2020,” 18, 22. 

http://cew.georgetown.edu/recovery2020 
2
 http://www9.georgetown.edu/grad/gppi/hpi/cew/pdfs/newyork.pdf 



OCC Foundation Inc. 
Proposal to the Onondaga Civic Development Corporation 

April 2014 
P a g e  2 

 
Although Onondaga works to keep all of its programs affordable, tuition remains a barrier for many 
individuals. The funding Onondaga received from OCDC in 2013-2014 played a critical role in making 
these programs accessible to individuals, as there are no federal or state financial aid dollars allocated 
for non-credit training.  Over the past years, OCDC support has made it possible for 18 individuals to 
complete the following programs: CCENT Cisco, CompTIA A+, Home Inspection, Medical Billing & Coding, 
Medical Interpreter. OCDC’s past contributions have had a tremendous impact, allowing the College to 
support individuals through critical workforce development initiatives. In fact, all of Onondaga’s recent 
Medical Interpreter certificate graduates would not have been able to attend Onondaga had it not been 
for the funding previously provided by OCDC. With such a large refugee population in Central New York, 
these interpreters provide a critical service to our medical and legal community. 
 
Through the proposed Economic Growth Grant of $40,000 targeted specifically for workforce 
development and training, OCDC will enable Onondaga to help an additional estimated 35 individuals to 
earn an industry-recognized certification or an occupation-specific credential that will enable them to 
gain the knowledge and skills they need for career entry or advancement.  Targeted credentials include:  
CompTIA A+, CompTIA Network, CompTIA Security+, Cisco Certified Entry Networking Technician, 
Medical Billing and Coding, Medical Interpreter, and Phlebotomy, among others.   
 
Benefits 
Support from OCDC through this request will promote career entry or advancement by enabling 
individuals to gain industry-specific and occupation-specific training and skills. These workforce 
development programs also serve as a stepping-stone to additional education and training. For example, 
a student who starts their education with a non-credit course in Medical Coding and Billing may choose 
to later enroll in Onondaga Community College’s Health Information Technology A.A.S. degree program. 
In addition, it will help companies – especially those in emerging industries – find the talent they need to 
compete in national and international markets. Many local employers recognize the value of this 
educational pathway by providing tuition reimbursement to incentivize employees to continue their 
education, leveraging the initial investment. In addition to the direct benefits to the individuals who 
complete the programs and gain entry into a new field or achieve advancement in their careers, 
employers and members of the Central New York community realize significant benefits. These include: 
 

Social Savings: An educated citizenry produces reduced demand for social services and resulting 
expenditures in the area of medical costs, law enforcement and income assistance. 
 
New Talent in the Employee Pool: Hundreds of businesses already avail themselves of the College’s 
affordable workforce development training programs. Recent workforce training initiatives include 
programs delivered for Anheuser Busch, Gaylord, Centro, St. Joseph’s Hospital Health Center, Time 
Warner, Loretto, Welch-Allyn, Crouse Hospital, Bowers & Company, CXTec, Jadak Technologies, 
Marquardt Switches, SRC, United Radio, AT&T and many others. By generating increased support for 
those seeking industry or occupation-specific credentials, we will enable displaced workers and those 
seeking career changes or advancement, to improve their career prospects.  Ultimately, this will serve to 
increase the pool of highly-qualified workers in our region, and better serve those businesses in need of 
a skilled workforce, enabling them to grow and thrive. 



 
 What are the programs that OCC has in place to train unemployed/underemployed workers?  
 
     Clean Energy and Environmental Systems  
 

 Automotive Technology A.A.S.  

 Apprentice Studies – Electrical Trades A.A.S.  

 Apprentice Studies – Building Trades A.A.S.  

 Environmental Technology A.A.S.  

 Interior Design A.A.S.  

 Architectural Technology A.A.S.  

 Nuclear Engineering Technology A.A.S. (Fall 2013)  

  Home Inspector Certification – Non- credit cert 

  Line Mechanic Utility Worker Certificate 
 
     Health, Biomedical Services and Biosciences  
 

 Nursing A.A.S.  

 Respiratory Care A.A.S.  

 Surgical Technology Certificate 

 Physical Therapy Assistant A.A.S.  

 Health Information Technology A.A.S. 

 Phlebotomy Non-credit Certification (Clinical) 

  Phlebotomy for Health Care Professionals – Non-credit (Non-clinical) Certification 

  Medical terminology - Non-credit-Online  

 Medical Coding ICD-10 - Online 

 Medical Coding and Billing Professional Non –credit Certification 

 Medical Coding and Billing Certification - Online  

 Pharmacy Technician Non-credit certification 

 Certified Clinical Medical Assistant Non-credit 

 Certified Clinical Medical Assistant Non-credit - Online  

 Certified personal trainer Non-credit Certification  

 Group Fitness Instructor Certification 

 Medical Interpreter Training – Non-credit 
 
        Financial Services  
 

 Accounting A.A.S.  

 Business Technology A.A.S.  

 Computer Information Systems A.A.S.  

 Business Technology A.A.S.  
      

Agribusiness and Food Processing  
 

 Business Technology A.A.S.  

 Accounting A.A.S.  
 

 
 



 
 
Advanced Manufacturing  
 

 Mechanical Technology A.A.S.  

 Electrical Technology A.A.S.  

 Computer Engineering Technology A.A.S.  

 Micro-computer Trouble shooting and Maintenance Cert  
 
 

Tourism 

  

 Hospitality Management A.A.S.  

 Professional Cooking Certificate  
 

 Computer Studies  
 

 Comp Tia A+ certification Non-credit  

 Comp Tia Network + - Non-credit  

 Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL) Non-credit cert  

 Comp Tia Healthcare IT Technician Non-credit  

 Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA) Non-credit  

 Web Page Develop ADOBE Dreamweaver CS5.5 Non-credit  

 Security + Non-credit certification  

 Computer Forensics – Non-credit 

 Cisco Certified Network Administrator (CCNA) Routing and Switching Non-credit 

 Cisco Certified Entry Network Technician (CCENT) Non-credit  

 Web Technology Certificate 

 



 

 

Board of Directors 
 

Executive Committee 
Kathleen "Casey" E. Crabill, Ed.D., College President 

James F. Holland, Chair 
Alicia S. Calagiovanni, Esq.,  Vice Chair 

Daniel J. Fisher, Vice Chair 
Michael J. Reilly, CPA '79, Treasurer 
Orrin B. MacMurray P.E., Secretary 
John J. Zacharek, Executive Director 

 
Directors 

Sandra L. Baker '80 
Nancy A. Bottar 

Patricia H. Deferio 
Sarah J.S. Gaffney 
Alexander P. Henn 
Judy C. Jesiolowski 
Peter G. King, A.I.A. 
Gary R. Livent, Ph.D. 

Gregory W. Loh 
James "Otey" Marshall 

Maureen McCarthy Tracy 
Donald H. Morgan 

John L. Murad, Jr., Esq. 
Mark W. Re '85 

Arthur H. Rees, CPA '78 
William E. Sanford 
Steven R. Schill '78 

James N. Seeley, Esq. 
Mark E. Tryniski '81 
















































	4.10.14 OCDC Agenda
	March 19 Minutes
	OCDC 4.10.14 Treasurer's Report
	Payment of Bills
	OCDC application OCCF April 2014
	OCDC-April 2014 request summary OCCF
	OCC Workforce Programs 2014
	OCCF Board of Directors 2013-2014
	OCCF Financial Statements 2013

